
 

1 
 

AGENDA 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

May 21, 2019, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 
 

1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the April 16, 2019 MTA regular 
Board meeting  

2. Pg. 07: Financial Reports:  April, 2019 
3. Pg. 14: Check Approval:  April 11-May 15, 2019 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: [None] 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Pg.   27:  2019 Certifications and Assurances – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
2. Pg.   34:  Interlocal Agreement with the City of Shelton – Resolution No. 2019-09 

– ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
3. Pg.   58:  Interlocal Agreement with PRTPO– Resolution No. 2019-12 – 

ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
4. Pg.   80: Agreement with Landau Associates for T-CC Parking Lot Environmental 

Services - Resolution No. 2019-13 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
 
INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION  

1. Pg.   92: Financial Outlook and Operating Margin Update (LeeAnn) 
 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 

1. Pg. 100:  Operational Statistics 
2. Pg. 111: Park and Ride Update 
3. Pg. 113: Management Reports 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 1



 

2 
 

UPCOMING MEETING: 
 

Public Hearing on Fare Increases 
Mason Transit Authority 
June 4, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

June 18, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Public Hearing on Fare Increases 
and  

Community Conversations 
Mason Transit Authority 
June 22, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Public Hearing on Fare Increases 
and  

Community Conversations 
Mason Transit Authority 
June 22, 2019 at 1:00 p.m. 

North Mason Timberland Regional Library 
Meeting Room 

23081 NE State Route 3 
Belfair 

 
Public Hearing on Transit Development Plan 

Mason Transit Authority 
July 2, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 

Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Public Hearing on Transit Development Plan 
Mason Transit Authority 
July 10, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 

North Mason Timberland Regional Library 
Meeting Room 

23081 NE State Route 3 
Belfair 

 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
April 16, 2019 
Port of Allyn 
18560 E SR 3 
Allyn 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:32 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Wes Martin, Vice Chair, Deb Petersen, 
Don Pogreba, Sandy Tarzwell and Sharon Trask. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: Randy Neatherlin, Chair (arrived at 
5:02pm-see below); John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy and Kevin Shutty, 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Bobby Joe Murray, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel; LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; 
Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager 
and Josh Jacobs, System Administrator.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the April 16, 2019 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. General Manager, Danette Brannin, requested that New Business Item 1 
and the Informational Presentation be removed from the agenda. Trask/Tarswell. Motion 
carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of March 19, 
2019. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for 

March, 2019 as presented. 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of March 14, 
2019 through April 10, 2019 financial obligations on checks #32543 through #32644, 
as presented for a total of $579,781.17. 

 
Tarzwell/Trask. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

1. Amendatory Resolution No. 2019-08 – Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Authority Board, 
described to the Board that there was a scrivener’s error when Resolution No. 2019-07 
had been adopted. Legal Counsel, Robert Johnson, described to the Board that it had 
awarded the bid submitted by CHG Building Systems in the amount of not to exceed 
$165,997 and the amount in the title of Resolution No. 2019-07 should have reflected 
that amount. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 
2019-08 to correct the scrivener’s error in Resolution No. 2019-07.  Trask/Pogreba. 
Motion carried.  

 
2. Remainder of GCB3098 Capital Construction Project Funding – Marshall Krier, 

Maintenance and Facility Manager, described to the Board that MTA submitted a request 
to WSDOT to seek approval to perform the additional facility repairs and improvements. 
MTA had received three bids to have the work performed and Affordable Asphalt 
Company of Tumwater, WA submitted the lowest bid of $31,553.81. All other projects or 
purchases are under the $25k General Manager approval threshold. Moved that Mason 
Transit Authority (1) approve updated project list; and (2) approve expenditure of 
$31,553.81 for the pavement repairs at Johns Prairie to be completed by 
Affordable Asphalt Company of Tumwater, WA. Petersen/Tarzwell. Motion 
carried.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

2. Surplus of Staff and Vanpool Vehicles – Mr. Krier informed the Board that three 
staff cars, one community van and one vanpool van have exceeded their useful life and 
are ready for surplus. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution 
No. 2019-10 declaring and approving the surplus and disposal of vehicles as set forth 
therein. Trask/Pogreba. Motion carried. 

 
3. Americans with Disabilities Policy (POL-504) – Ms. Brannin spoke to the Board 

relating to the necessary updates to this policy requested by WSDOT. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-11 and the attached 
Americans with Disabilities Policy (POL-504). Tarzwell/Petersen. Motion carried. 

 
4. Application for Low or No Emission Program Grant – Mr. Krier provided the Board 

with information relating to the Low or No Emission Program grant and that the deadline 
for filing the grant is May 14, 2019. The current Worker/Driver buses are beyond their 
useful life and requiring more repairs as a result. He went on to say that requesting the 
purchase of two hybrid buses will work well for the Worker/Driver program and meet the 
Governor’s mandate for alternative fuel use. Mr. Krier also indicated that the estimated 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

match of 25%, which is estimated to be $375,000, would come from reserves.  Moved 
that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the General Manager to finalize, 
approve, sign and submit a grant application for the Low or No Emission Vehicles grant 
program.  Petersen/Pogreba. Motion carried. 

 
5. Operations and Maintenance Committee Recommendations on Fares – Board 

member Don Pogreba briefed the Board as to the meeting of the Operations and 
Maintenance Committee and review of the fares. Citizen Advisor to the Board had no 
additional comments. The Operations and Maintenance Committee recommends 
the approval to increase the adult monthly pass to $30 and the seniors/persons with 
disabilities monthly pass to $10, following public hearings as required. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
6. Approval of Technology Purchase – Josh Jacobs, System Administrator, 

recommended to the Board that MTA purchase upgraded AngelTrax high definition 
camera systems and hard drives for certain buses so that the technology would be in 
alignment with MTA’s new buses as well as satisfying retention requirements for video. 
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the expense of $50,494.69 to be 
paid from technology grant#GCB2615 Project B for the acquisition of high definition 
cameras and hard drives. Petersen/Trask. Motion carried. 

 
[Board Chair Neatherlin arrived at 5:02 pm] 
 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – Ms. Brannin briefly described to the Board additional 
information relating to the park and ride projects.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin discussed the gym and its frequent use for 
event rentals and that if there is ever a complaint, it is about the acoustics. Two bids have been 
received on costs of panels to resolve acoustic issues and found that they were too expensive. 
One suggestion was made to explore having manufactured curtains as another facility had done 
and found it to be a less expensive solution. 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS –  Board member Pogreba asked why it was necessary 
to meet at Port of Allyn as the distance seems to create a problem. The Clerk of the Board 
had indicated that in years past members of the Board wanted to hold the meeting twice 
annually at the Port of Allyn so as to provide another location that may be closer to the 
public should they wish to attend. It was suggested that the Board consider this when setting 
the 2020 regular meeting schedule, which also sets the location. No public had attended this 
meeting. 
 
Board member Petersen apologized that she was late as she was in a meeting that went 
much longer than anticipated and was unable to reach anyone to notify them until the Clerk 
called. 
 
Board Chair Neatherlin also expressed his apologies, but the car he was driving was dead on 
the side of the road. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 5



4 

 

               

Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:18 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, May 21, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 6



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 7



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 8



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 9



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 10



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 11



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 12



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 13



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 14



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 15



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 16



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 17



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 18



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 19



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 20



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 21



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 22



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 23



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 24



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 25



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 26



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    2019 Certifications and Assurances 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
 
Background: 
 
In order to receive Federal grant assistance for either capital or operating, it is required 
by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) that Mason Transit Authority (MTA) 
complete the fiscal Certifications and Assurances acknowledging and certifying that MTA 
will comply with all Federal statutes, regulations, Executive Orders and administrative 
requirements applicable to applications made to and grants received from the 
Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT). 
 
Attached are the required forms to be signed and submitted to WSDOT. 
 
 
 
Summary: Approve and authorize Board Chair to sign FTA Fiscal Year 2019 
Certifications and Assurances 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve and authorize the Board Chair to 
sign the FTA Fiscal Year 2019 Certifications and Assurances to acknowledge compliance 
as required.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 27



790 East Johns Prairie Rd  ●  Shelton, WA 98584  ●  360-427-5033 or 800-374-3747  ●  MasonTransit.org 
 

 

 
 
May 21, 2019 
 
 
Beth Le Duc 
Business Analyst 
Washington State Department of Transportation 
Public Transportation Office 
P. O. Box 47387 
Olympia, WA  98504-7387 
 
Dear Ms. Le Duc: 
 
Mason Transit Authority hereby certifies that it will comply with all Federal statutes, regulations, 
Executive Orders, and administrative requirements applicable to its application made to and grants 
received from the Washington State Department of Transportation under 49 U.S.C. Sections 5309, 5311, 
5316 and 5339.   
 
In addition, Mason Transit Authority hereby accepts all the provisions of the Department of Labor’s 
Special Section 5333(b) Warranty for Applications to the Small Urban and Rural Program.  Mason 
Transit Authority’s transportation employees are represented by IAM and AW District 160, 
2121-70th Avenue West, Suite A, University Place, WA 98466. 
 
The provisions of 49 U.S.C. Section 5333(b), 290 CFR Part 215, and Section 1001 of Title 18, U.S.C., 
apply to all certifications and submissions in connection with applications made to and grants received 
from 49 U.S.C. Sections 5309, 5311 and 5339. 
 
Mason Transit Authority certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the 
statements and understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Section 3801 et seq. are applicable thereto. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Randy Neatherlin 
Chair of the Authority Board 
Mason Transit Authority 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 28



FTA FISCAL YEAR 2019 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2019 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.) 

Name of Applicant:_____________________________________________________ 

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of categories 01–18. __X_____ 

Or, 

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected: 

Category Certification 

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant 

02 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions 

03 Lobbying 

04 Private Sector Protections 

05 Transit Asset Management Plan 

06 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing 

07 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program 

08 Formula Grants for Rural Areas 

09 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited 
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program 

10 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission 
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs 

11 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 
Programs 

12 State of Good Repair Grants 

13 Infrastructure Finance Programs 

14 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing 

15 Rail Safety Training and Oversight 

16 Demand Responsive Service 

17 Interest and Financing Costs 

18 Construction Hiring Preferences 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 29



FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2019 FTA CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE 
PAGE 

(Required of all Applicants for federal assistance to be awarded by FTA in FY 2019) 

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT 

Name of the Applicant: 

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these 
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations, 
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as 
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) in federal fiscal year 2019, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or 
her Applicant’s behalf continues to represent it. 

FTA intends that the Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects on the other side of this document 
should apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may later seek federal assistance to be awarded during 
federal fiscal year 2019. 

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the 
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations, 
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to 
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in 
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute 

In signing this document, I declare under penalties of perjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and 
any other statements made by me on behalf of the Applicant are true and accurate. 

Signature Date: 

Name  Authorized Representative of Applicant 

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT’S ATTORNEY 

For (Name of Applicant): 

As the undersigned Attorney for the above-named Applicant, I hereby affirm to the Applicant that it has authority 
under state, local, or tribal government law, as applicable, to make and comply with the Certifications and 
Assurances as indicated on the foregoing pages. I further affirm that, in my opinion, the Certifications and 
Assurances have been legally made and constitute legal and binding obligations on it. 

I further affirm that, to the best of my knowledge, there is no legislation or litigation pending or imminent that 
might adversely affect the validity of these Certifications and Assurances, or of the performance of its FTA 
assisted Award. 

Signature Date: 

Name  Attorney or Board Chair for Applicant 

Each Applicant for federal assistance to be awarded by FTA must provide an Affirmation of Applicant’s Attorney 
pertaining to the Applicant’s legal capacity. The Applicant may enter its electronic signature in lieu of the 
Attorney’s signature within TrAMS, provided the Applicant has on file and uploaded to TrAMS this hard-copy 
Affirmation, signed by the attorney and dated this federal fiscal year. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 30



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 31



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 32



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 33



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:  City of Shelton Pear Orchard Interlocal Agreement    
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
 
Background: 
 
As part of MTA’s overall Park and Ride Development Project, MTA will be constructing a 
park and ride lot on city of Shelton owned property located near SR 3 and Front Street, 
commonly known as Pear Orchard. The park and ride lot will have 32 parking stalls, a 
bus turnaround, passenger shelter, lighting, security cameras, electric vehicle charging 
station and landscaping. 
 
The interlocal agreement with the City covers operation and maintenance of the park 
and ride and other terms of agreement. 
 
The interlocal agreement and resolution have been reviewed and approved by Legal 
Counsel.  
 
 
Summary: Approval to enter into City of Shelton Interlocal Agreement 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Interlocal Agreement 
between Mason Transit Authority and the City of Shelton for the Pear Orchard Park and 
Ride and approve Resolution No. 2019-09 authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
Interlocal Agreement. 
  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 34



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 35



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 36



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 37



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 38



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 39



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 40



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 41



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 42



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 43



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 44



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 45



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 46



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 47



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 48



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 49



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 50



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 51



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 52



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 53



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 54



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 55



Resolution No. 2019-09 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SHELTON REGARDING 
PEAR ORCHARD PARK AND RIDE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) through its Authority Board desires to 
construct and operate a park and ride lot commonly known as the Pear Orchard Park and Ride 
located near SR 3 and Front Street in Shelton, WA; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTA and the City of Shelton (“City”) desire to enter into an agreement 

relating to the operation and maintenance of the Pear Orchard Park and Ride lot, which is 
located on real property owned by the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTA provides public transportation within the City of Shelton and 

Mason County, and has adopted a comprehensive plan to provide mass transit for said rural 
area, which includes providing transit service at the Pear Orchard Park and Ride lot; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTA agrees to operate and maintain the park and ride lot in exchange for 

the right to operate transit services; and  
 
WHEREAS, MTA and the City are authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to 

Chapter 39.34 RCW;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD that the General Manager is authorized to sign the Interlocal Agreement between MTA 
and the City relating to the operations and maintenance of the Pear Orchard Park and Ride. 
 

Adopted this 21st day of May, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
 
  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 56



Resolution No. 2019-09 Page 2 of 2 
 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:         
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:      
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 57



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:  Peninsula Regional Transportation Policy Interlocal Agreement   
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) was established 
through an interlocal agreement executed in 1990 which included Clallam, Jefferson, 
Kitsap and Mason Counties. 
 
Some of the key duties of the PRTPO are: 

• Development of the long-range Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) to 
guide development of regional transportation systems; 

• Development and regular updating of the Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (RTIP); 

• Certifying concurrency of the transportation elements of local 
comprehensive plans; and 

• Evaluation and prioritization of grant application for programs such as the 
Public Transportation Consolidated Grant Program and the Transportation 
Alternatives Programs (TAP). 

 
The PRTPO recently updated the 1990 interlocal agreement to accomplish the following: 

• Reflect statutory and regulatory changes; 
• Memorialize a clearer operating structure; 
• Give voting membership to every public agency that signs the updated 

interlocal agreement; and 
• Reflect the change of lead planning agency following WSDOT’s notification 

that it will no longer serve in that role. 
 
 
The interlocal agreement and resolution have been reviewed and approved by Legal 
Counsel.  
 
 
Summary: Approval to enter into Peninsula Regional Transportation Policy 
Interlocal Agreement 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 58



Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Interlocal Agreement 
between Mason Transit Authority and other public agencies comprising the Peninsula 
Regional Transportation Planning Organization for the purpose of updating the existing 
Interlocal Agreement and approve Resolution No. 2019-12 authorizing the General 
Manager to sign the Interlocal Agreement. 
  
 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 59



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

Peninsula RTPO Interlocal Agreement 

April 22, 2019 

Danette Brannin 
Mason Transit 
790 East John’s Prairie Road 
Shelton, WA    98585 

Greetings Danette; 

The Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) was established 
through an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) executed in 1990 including the counties of Clallam, 
Jefferson, Kitsap and Mason.  Recently the PRTPO undertook updating of the ILA to: 

� Reflect statutory and regulatory changes; 
� Memorialize a clearer operating structure; 
� Give voting membership to every public agency who signs the updated ILA; and 
� Reflect the change of lead planning agency following WSDOT’s notification that it 

will no longer serve in that role. 

Mason Transit has been a member of the PRTPO Executive Board for many years and we 
hope you will continue to collaborate on regional transportation planning through membership 
in the PRTPO.  

Some of the key duties of the PRTPO are: 
• Development of the long-range Regional Transportation Plan(RTP) to guide

development of regional transportation systems;
• Development and regular updating of the Regional Transportation Improvement

Program (RTIP);
• Certifying concurrency of the transportation elements of local comprehensive plans; and
• Evaluation and prioritization of grant application for programs such as the Public

Transportation Consolidated Grant Program and the Transportation Alternatives
Programs(TAP)

More information about the duties and responsibilities of the PRTPO are detailed in RCW 
47.80- Regional Transportation Planning Organizations. The work of the PRTPO is funded 
through a planning grant from Washington State Department of Transportation. No direct dues 
or assessments are levied on members.  

The strength of the PRTPO springs from its members and their collective knowledge of local 
and regional transportation needs and the power of collaboration. To maintain designation as a 
Regional Transportation Planning Organization the PRTPO must have as members all four 
counties and  at least sixty percent of the cities and towns within the region representing a 
minimum of seventy five percent of the cities’ and towns’ population.  I encourage you to 
continue your commitment to membership in the RPTPO.  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 60



Peninsula RTPO Interlocal Agreement 
Page 2 of 2 

By executing the ILA Mason Transit will be a member with full voting rights on all matters 
brought before the Executive Board and will have a seat on the Technical Advisory Committee. 
I ask that you give execution of the ILA your immediate consideration and, should you choose 
to become a signatory to the PRTPO ILA, you authorize such action as soon as possible so 
that re-certification of the PRTPO can be confirmed.  

Attached to this letter you will find: 
• A copy of the ILA; and
• An example resolution authorizing adoption of the ILA
• Guidance for signing the ILA

If you wish, a member of the PRTPO executive committee will meet with elected leaders in 
your jurisdiction to explain the role and benefits of membership in the PRTPO.   

If you have questions, please contact myself at anesse@jamestowntribe.org or 360-681-4620.  
A staff member of the PRTPO will follow up with you as we track progress towards full 
execution of the ILA.   

With Regards, 

Annette Nesse 
Executive Board Chair 
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 

Distribution: 
Clallam County Mason Transit 
Jefferson County Port of Allyn 
Kitsap County Port of Bremerton  
Mason County Port of Port Angeles 
Bainbridge Island Port of Shelton 
Bremerton  Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe 
Forks  Hoh 
Port Angeles Lower Elwha Klallam Tribe 
Port Orchard Makah 
Port Townsend Quileute Nation 
Poulsbo Port Gamble S’Klallam 
Sequim Squaxin Island Tribe 
Shelton  Skokomish Indian Tribe 
Clallam Transit Suquamish 
Jefferson Transit  WSDOT Olympic Region 
Kitsap Transit 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 61



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

for the 

PENINSULA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the undersigned public agencies 

to establish and jointly participate in the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization (PRTPO), pursuant to provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1967, chapter 

39.34 RCW, and the Growth Management Act, chapters 36.70A and 47.80 RCW. 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the undersigned public agencies recognize the need and desirability to participate in 

a forum for cooperative decision making by elected officials of said agencies in order to 

implement a comprehensive regional transportation planning process; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned public agencies adopt transportation plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act authorizes establishment of Regional Transportation 

Planning Organizations through the voluntary association of local governments within a county, 

or geographically contiguous counties; and 

WHEREAS, it is the belief of the undersigned public agencies that state and regional 

transportation planning should receive policy direction from all affected governments and special 

purpose districts and major employers; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned public agencies are authorized and empowered to enter into this 

agreement pursuant to RCW 47.80.020 and chapter 39.34 RCW; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned public agencies recognize that the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) 

establishing the PRTPO in 1990 needs to be reviewed and updated to conform to current law and 

practices, and that now is an opportune time given the impending change of the Lead Planning 

Agency. This 2019 ILA fully replaces and supersedes the 1990 ILA. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises and covenants herein it is hereby 

agreed: 

Agreement 

1. Organization and Membership

The Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO), a separate legal entity, 

originally established in 1990 and hereby re-established, encompasses the territory physically 

lying within the counties of Clallam, Jefferson, Kitsap and Mason Counties as authorized by 

chapter 47.80 RCW and chapter 468-86 WAC.  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 62



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 2 

Voting membership in the PRPTO shall be open to the following public agencies within the 

boundaries of the PRTPO: all county and city governments, all federally recognized tribes, all 

port districts organized under title 53 RCW, all transit districts organized under chapter 36.57A 

RCW, and the WSDOT Olympic Region. Current voting membership belongs to each of the 

public agencies who have executed this Agreement. New voting members may be added by the 

execution of this Agreement when approved by the Executive Board.  

Nonvoting membership is authorized and encouraged to facilitate cooperative regional 

transportation planning. Nonvoting membership shall be open to community organizations, 

employers and other public agencies that are not voting members. Nonvoting membership shall 

be as approved by the voting membership in accordance with the Bylaws. 

2. Purpose and Authority

The purpose of the PRTPO is to fulfill the legislature’s intent to have local jurisdictions, tribes, 

and the state come together for coordinated transportation planning and to have an 

interconnected and coordinated transportation system that achieves both statewide and local 

transportation goals.  

To accomplish these purposes, the PRTPO shall have the following authority and duties, as 

established by chapter 47.80 RCW:  

A. Provide a forum for cooperative decision making by the region's elected officials in

order to bring about a continuous and comprehensive transportation planning process.

B. Foster cooperation and collaboration among local, state and tribal governments

throughout the region.

C. Maintain an ongoing transportation strategy for the region and coordinate actions of

local and state government so that we may make the best use of our land, air, water

and energy resources and overcome the problems of waste and pollution.

D. Develop and adopt a Regional Transportation Plan that is consistent with countywide

planning policies, with county and city transportation plans, and with state

transportation plans.

E. Certify that transportation elements of comprehensive plans adopted by Clallam,

Jefferson, and Mason Counties and cities therein are consistent with the Growth

Management Act and with the PRTPO’s Regional Transportation Plan. Also, where

appropriate, certify that their countywide planning policies adopted under RCW

36.70A.210 and the adopted Regional Transportation Plan are consistent.

F. Develop a six-year Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) for areas

within Clallam, Jefferson and Mason counties that proposes regionally significant

transportation project and programs and transportation demand measures.

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 63



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 3 

G. Develop a Coordinated Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan and include

specific opportunities and projects aimed to advance special needs coordinated

transportation.

H. Designate and direct a lead planning agency to coordinate preparation of the Regional

Transportation Plan and carry out other responsibilities of the PRTPO as set forth in

the Bylaws.

I. Provide assistance to others to develop level of services standards or alternative

transportation performance measures and review those standards of GMA counties

and cities to promote a consistent regional evaluation of transportation facilities and

services.

J. Foster and facilitate cooperation and coordination between other regional

transportation planning organizations and metropolitan planning organizations.

K. Foster transportation facilities which encourage economic growth and stability for the

region.

L. Provide assistance and information to public agencies in their preparation of local

transportation plans.

3. Organization Structure

The PRTPO shall have the following structure as set forth herein and as further described in the 

Bylaws.  

A. Executive Board. An Executive Board is hereby established to be the governing body

of the PRTPO. All voting members shall have representation on the Executive Board

as described in the Bylaws.

B. Transportation Policy Board. A Transportation Policy Board is hereby established to

provide policy advice to the Executive Board on regional transportation issues as

provided by RCW 47.80.040. Composition of the Transportation Policy Board shall

be determined as provided in the Bylaws.

C. Technical Advisory Committee. A Technical Advisory Committee is hereby

established to provide technical advice to the Executive Board on all matters that may

come before the Board. Composition of the Technical Advisory Committee shall be

determined as provided in the Bylaws.

D. The Executive Board may establish other committees as needed to perform the duties

of the PRTPO as provided in the Bylaws.

// 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 64



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 4 

4. Bylaws

Bylaws shall be adopted to carry out the purpose and objectives set forth herein and shall, at a 

minimum, include schedules and rules for meetings as well as voting structures for the PRTPO 

and any board or committee thereof. The Bylaws shall initially be adopted by a majority vote of 

the total members of the organization and shall be amended as provided for in the Bylaws.  

5. Lead Planning Agency

The PRTPO shall designate a Lead Planning Agency to perform the duties required by chapter 

47.80 RCW and such other duties as assigned by the Executive Board. 

The duties of the Lead Planning Agency shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

provide staff support and coordination for the Executive Board, the Transportation Policy Board 

and the Technical Advisory Committee; hire, supervise and administer personnel, contractors 

and consultants as directed by the Executive Board; and provide such information, data, 

inventories and services as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of the PRTPO. 

6. Fiscal Agent

The PRTPO shall designate a Fiscal Agent to perform the financial duties as assigned by the 

Executive Board. These may include, but are not limited to, the collection and disbursement of 

funds for the purposes of the organization and the provision of information, data, and services as 

may be necessary to carry out the financial obligations of the PRTPO. At the Executive Board’s 

discretion, the Fiscal Agent may be the same entity as the Lead Planning Agency. 

7. Financing

The PRTPO shall be financed in a manner as provided for in the Bylaws and through such local, 

state, federal, and/or private funding as becomes available. The PRTPO, or the Lead Planning 

Agency on behalf of the organization, is authorized to apply for such federal, state or private 

funding of any nature as may become available to assist the PRTPO in carrying out its purposes 

and functions. 

8. Budget

The Lead Planning Agency shall develop a budget which will meet the anticipated expenses of 

the PRTPO for the coming budget year. The Lead Planning Agency shall submit the proposed 

budget to the Executive Board for review and comment.  

9. Insurance

The Executive Board shall procure insurance sufficient to provide adequate coverage for the 

obligations and liabilities of the PRTPO. 

// 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 65



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 5 

10. Duration

This Agreement is perpetual unless a member decides to withdraw from the PRTPO pursuant to 

Section 11 or the members agree to dissolve the PRTPO pursuant to Section 12 of this 

Agreement. 

11. Withdrawal from the PRTPO

Any member shall have the right to withdraw from the PRTPO and this agreement by giving six 

months written notice to the Executive Board. The remaining members agree that such 

withdrawal will not absolve them of responsibility for meeting financial and other obligations of 

annual contracts or agreements of the PRTPO. Further, such withdrawal will not affect the 

continuation of the PRTPO unless the requirements of RCW 47.80.020 are no longer met. 

12. Dissolution of the PRTPO

The PRTPO may be dissolved at any meeting of the Executive Board by a majority vote of all 

voting members, so long as all voting members were provided at least six months written notice 

of the proposed dissolution, or as otherwise provided for in the bylaws, and all voting members 

were provided an opportunity for comment on the motion. 

Upon dissolution of the PRTPO, all liabilities, costs, expenses, and charges validly incurred shall 

be resolved. If any funds or assets of the PRTPO remain, such shall be returned as provided by 

law or contract, or distributed as determined by the Executive Board. The debts, liabilities, and 

obligations of the PRTPO shall not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of any member.  

13. Binding effect

The undersigned public agencies agree that this Interlocal Agreement is binding and that each 

will use their best efforts for coordinated and cooperative transportation planning. All tribes 

expressly agree to a limited waiver of their sovereign immunity for the sole and limited purpose 

of committing to the terms and obligations of this Interlocal Agreement.  

14. General Terms

A. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or its application to any person or

circumstance is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the

Agreement or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not

affected.

B. Counterparts. This agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which

shall be considered the same as an original.

C. Publishing. In accordance with RCW 39.34.040, this Agreement shall be made

available on the PRTPO website.

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 66



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement - 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement shall have the full force and effect from 

and after this ____ day of __________, 20___. 

[signatures to follow] 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 67



Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization 

2019 Interlocal Agreement – Signature Page 

BY THE SIGNATURE OF THE UNDERSIGNED PUBLIC AGENCY, IT AGREES TO 

BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE 2019 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT OF THE 

PENINSULA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION.

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

_______________________________    Dated:   May 21, 2019
Danette Brannin, General Manager

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 68



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 69



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 70



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 71



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 72



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 73



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 74



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 75



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 76



May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 77



Resolution No. 2019-12 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE PENINSULA REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) was 
established through an lnterlocal Agreement originally executed in 1990 by the counties of 
Clallam, Jefferson, Kitsap and Mason; 

 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement was executed almost thirty years ago, and statutory 
and regulatory updates have occurred since then; 

 
WHEREAS, the PRTPO has determined it necessary to update the Interlocal Agreement and 
to memorialize a clearer operational structure to give voting membership to every public 
agency that executes the updated Interlocal Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation(WSDOT) has notified the 
PRTPO that it will no longer serve as the Lead Planning Agency; 

 
WHEREAS, the PRTPO has continuously operated with the important collaboration of the 
following entities for regional transportation planning and Mason Transit Authority wishes to 
continue this effort: 

• The Counties of Clallam, Jefferson, Kitsap and Mason; 
• The Cities of Bremerton, Forks, Port Angeles, Port Orchard, Port Townsend, Sequim, 

and Shelton; 
• The Ports of Allyn, Bremerton, Shelton and Port Angeles; 
• Clallam Transit, Jefferson Transit Authority, Kitsap Transit and Mason Transit; 
• The Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe, Lower Elwa Klallam Tribe, Hoh, Makah Tribe, Quileute 

Nation, Port Gamble S’Klallam, Skokomish Indian Tribe. Squaxin Island Tribe, and 
Suquamish; and 

• WSDOT – Olympic Region. 
 

WHEREAS, the PRTPO has prepared an Interlocal Agreement and has asked that Mason 
Transit Authority execute this updated Interlocal Agreement to remain a voting member of 
the PRTPO subject to the terms of the Interlocal Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority wishes to remain a voting member of the PRTPO and 
agrees to be bound by the terms of the Interlocal Agreement. 

 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 78



Resolution No. 2019-12 Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
that the General Manager is authorized to execute the attached Interlocal Agreement on behalf 
of Mason Transit Authority, thereby rendering Mason Transit Authority as a member of the 
Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization. 
 

Adopted this 21st day of May, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:         
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:      
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 79



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Contract with Landau Associates for T-CC Parking Lot 

Environmental Services 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
 
Background: 
 
Following notification from the Washington State Department of Ecology (“DOE”) that it 
was necessary for Mason Transit Authority to perform additional soil testing of the T-CC 
parking lot, we sought out an environmental compliance professional to provide those 
services necessary to complete the testing and seek a no further action opinion. We 
would like to proceed immediately so that we could construct a new pervious parking 
lot and pedestrian concourse while the weather is ideal for construction before the fall 
and winter weather arrive. 
 
Landau Associates has provided MTA with its Scope of Services and cost estimate in 
connection with that project. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed the Scope of Services Contract. 
 
 
Summary: Approval of Scope of Services with Landau Associates 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$57,900 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Scope of Services Contract 
between Mason Transit Authority and Landau Associates, Inc. for the purpose of 
providing environmental services and approve Resolution No. 2019-13 authorizing the 
General Manager to sign the Scope of Services contract.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 80



 

2107 South C Street  •  Tacoma, Washington 98402  •  (253) 926‐2493  •  www.landauinc.com 

April 30, 2019 

Mason Transit Authority 
526 Pattison Street, WE 
Olympia, WA 98501 

Attn:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 

Transmitted via email to:  dbrannin@masontransit.org 
 
Re:  Scope of Services and Cost Estimate 
  T‐CC Parking Lot Environmental Services 
  Shelton, Washington 

Dear Ms. Brannin: 

Landau Associates, Inc. (LAI) is pleased to present this proposal for environmental services in support of 

the proposed Mason Transit Authority (MTA) Transit‐Community Center (T‐CC) parking lot redevelopment 

project located at 522 Railroad Avenue in Shelton, Washington (site). The site has been enrolled in the 

Washington State Department of Ecology’s (Ecology’s) Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP) due to various 

historical site uses.  

Based on information provided by representatives of MTA, we understand that the site will be 

redeveloped with a new pervious parking lot and pedestrian corridor connecting Railroad Avenue to the T‐

CC. The top 3 feet (ft) of existing soil will be disposed of offsite to make way for pervious pavement and 

associated subgrade material. From a review of historical documents and resources available on the 

Ecology website, we understand the MTA requires documentation of soil and groundwater at the site in 

preparation for redevelopment. 

Proposed	Scope	of	Services	
Tasks for this scope of services include:  

 Task 1.  Project Planning 

 Task 2.  Soil and Groundwater Investigation 

 Task 3.  Data Evaluation and Reporting 

 Task 4.  Construction Regulatory Support 

 Task 5:  Project Management 

 Contingent tasks, if needed 

‒ Stockpile Sampling 

‒ Additional Soil Analysis and Reporting. 

Details related to each task are presented in the sections below.  

Task	1.		Project	Planning	
LAI will complete the following: 

 Preparation of a sampling plan (work plan), which will provide details of the investigation. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 81



T‐CC Parking Lot    Landau Associates 

April 30, 2019    2 

 Coordination with Ecology’s VCP program to confirm that the proposed work will meet Ecology 
requirements (additional analytes may be added to the list below, if recommended by Ecology).  

 Preparation of a site‐specific health and safety plan. 

 Coordination with MTA to identify utilities in the area and access to the site. 

Task	2.		Soil	and	Groundwater	Investigation	
LAI will complete a subsurface investigation to determine whether soil or groundwater contamination is 

present. Soil borings will be advanced with a direct‐push drill rig at eight locations around the site, focusing 

on areas along the property boundary and near the existing building. Soil samples will be collected from 

each boring; groundwater samples will also be collected from three of the borings. The field investigation 

scope is summarized below:  

 Eight soil borings will be advanced to a maximum depth of 15 ft below ground surface (bgs). It is 
anticipated that groundwater is shallow during the wet season (3 to 4 ft bgs).  

 Soil samples will be collected and field‐screened at each boring location; soil samples will also be 
visually classified for soil type. 

 A surface soil sample will be collected from six of the eight soil borings spaced evenly throughout 
the site and analyzed for pre‐disposal characterization purposes. At each of the six borings, the top 
0 to 3 ft bgs will be composited to represent the material that will be disposed of offsite. 
Additional characterization stockpile sampling (if required) is included as a scope contingency.  

 If field screening indicates no evidence of contamination, a sample will be collected in each of the 
eight soil borings at the bottom of the boring or immediately above the groundwater table (if 
encountered). If evidence of contamination is encountered in a boring, an additional soil sample 
may be collected from each boring; additional budget to cover these analytical costs will be 
requested in a budget amendment. For the purposes of cost estimation, a total of 14 soil samples 
are assumed (one at the bottom of each of the 8 borings and 6 composite samples for waste 
characterization). 

 Soil samples will be appropriately preserved and submitted to Eurofins TestAmerica Laboratory 
located in Fife, Washington, under appropriate chain‐of‐custody procedures. Analyses will be run 
on a standard 2‐week turnaround time, for the following analyses: 

‒ Gasoline‐range, diesel‐range, and oil‐range petroleum hydrocarbons (GRO, DRO, and ORO, 
respectively) by Ecology‐approved NWTPH‐Gx and NWTPH‐Dx. 

‒ Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) by US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Method 
8260C. Samples will be analyzed for constituents commonly found in petroleum products, 
including benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and xylenes (BTEX); 1,2‐ dichloroethane (EDC); 
and methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) 

‒ 1,2‐dibromoethane (EDB) by EPA Method 8011 and 8260LL. 

‒ Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 8 metals1 by EPA Method 6020A/7471 
and hexavalent chromium at up to three locations by EPA Method 7196A. 

‒ Carcinogenic polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (cPAHs) using EPA Method 8270 select ion 
monitoring (SIM). 

‒ Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) using EPA Method 8082A. 

‒ All volatile soil samples will be collected using EPA Method 5035. 

                                                            
1  Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Metals include arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium, 
and silver.  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 82



T‐CC Parking Lot    Landau Associates 

April 30, 2019    3 

 A groundwater sample will be collected from a temporary well screen installed at three of the 
boring locations. One duplicate groundwater sample will be collected for quality control purposes. 
Groundwater samples will be appropriately preserved and submitted to Eurofins TestAmerica 
Laboratory located in Fife, Washington under appropriate chain‐of‐custody procedures. Analyses 
will be run on a standard 2‐week turnaround time, for the following analyses: 

‒ GRO, DRO, and ORO by NWTPH‐Gx and NWTPH‐Dx. 

‒ BTEX by EPA Method 8260C. 

‒ EDB by EPA Method 8011. 

‒ Dissolved RCRA 8 metals by EPA Method 6020A/7471. Groundwater samples to be 
analyzed for metals will be field‐filtered.  

‒ cPAHs by EPA Method 8270 SIM 

‒ PCBs by EPA Method 8082. 

 Investigation derived waste (IDW) groundwater and soil generated as part of this subsurface 
investigation will be drummed separately (one drum for soil and one drum for aqueous waste), 
properly labeled, and stored onsite. LAI will coordinate the disposal of IDW following completion 
of field sampling. Costs for IDW disposal, including subcontractor costs, are included in this 
proposal. LAI assumes one additional visit to the site to facilitate pickup of the IDW drums by the 
disposal contractor. LAI will also coordinate with MTA to ensure the waste manifest is signed by 
appropriate transit authority personnel.  

Task	3.		Data	Evaluation	and	Reporting	
Upon receipt of soil and groundwater sample laboratory results, LAI will conduct a review of the analytical 

data for quality control/quality assurance purposes, tabulate the data, and compare the results to 

applicable regulatory criteria.  

The results of the subsurface investigation and analytical sample results will be documented in a technical 

memorandum that will be suitable for submittal to Ecology’s VCP. The technical memorandum will include 

recommendations for follow‐up activities and/or appropriate cleanup options based on the investigation 

results and current and future site development plans. A draft of the technical memorandum will be 

submitted to MTA for review prior to finalization. Both draft and final memoranda will be submitted 

electronically. 

This task also includes submitting analytical results through Ecology’s Environmental Information 

Management system (EIM; required for the VCP program). It is assumed that historical analytical results 

have already been submitted and only analytical results from LAI investigations will be included in the EIM 

submittal. 

Task	4.		Construction	Regulatory	Support	
Task 4 services include LAI time to review and comment on MTA and contractor submittals, and answer 

questions that arise during preparation for and execution of construction. It is assumed that the site has 

relatively low concentrations of contaminants, and little oversight will be required. It is assumed that 20 

hours of LAI personnel time will be required for this task. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 83



T‐CC Parking Lot    Landau Associates 

April 30, 2019    4 

Task	5.		Project	Management	
This task will include overall coordination, contracting, management, project billing, and administration of 

the project including communications with MTA and contractors.  

Contingent	Task	‐	Stockpile	Sampling	
Task 2 includes shallow soil characterization sampling in support of offsite disposal. In the event that the 

results of the subsurface investigation (Task 2) indicate soil concentration hotspots, additional stockpile 

sampling will likely be required. This task includes one additional mobilization to the site for soil sampling, 

analytical costs for up to six soil samples, and additional time for data management and evaluation.  

Contingent	Task	‐	Additional	Soil	and	Groundwater	Analysis	and	
Reporting	
A number of contingent soil and groundwater analyses are included: 

 In the event that visual evidence of contamination is encountered (as described in Task 2), 
additional collection of soil samples may be required. This task includes budget for eight 
additional soil samples for the analyses described in Task 2.  

 If hexavalent chromium is detected in the three soil samples, all samples above cleanup levels 
will be analyzed for hexavalent chromium (up to 20 additional samples) 

 If hexavalent chromium is detected in soil, groundwater samples will also be analyzed for 
hexavalent chromium by EPA Method 7196A.  

This task also includes additional time for data management and evaluation.  

Estimated	Budget	
The estimated budget is detailed below and is based on the information provided to LAI and on our 

previous experience with similar projects. If unforeseen conditions are encountered, we will bring these to 

your attention and seek modification to the scope of services and budget, as appropriate. 

Scope of Services  Cost 

Task 1:  Project Planning  $  5,500 

Task 2:  Soil and Groundwater Investigation  $23,000 

LAI Labor  $  5,200 

Direct Costs (Mileage, Field Sampling Equipment, Supplies)  $  1,000 

Utility Locates  $     300 

Drilling Costs  $  2,800 

Analytical Costs  $12,900 

Waste Disposal  $     800 

Task 3:  Data Evaluation and Reporting  $  6,900 

Task 4: Construction Regulatory Support  $  4,500 

Task 5:  Project Management/Administration  $  4,400 

TOTAL  $44,300 

Contingency – Stockpile Sampling  $  5,400 

Contingency – Additional Soil and Groundwater Analysis  $  8,200 

TOTAL (with contingency)  $ 57,900 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 84



T‐CC Parking Lot    Landau Associates 

April 30, 2019    5 

Assumptions	
For the purpose of scoping and budgeting this project, the following assumptions were made: 

 All work will be completed on MTA property. MTA will provide LAI with necessary access to the 
property and drilling locations and ensure that the locations are accessible by the drill rig and field 
vehicles. MTA will coordinate closure or rerouting of traffic in the area during work periods, as 
necessary.  

 The marking of the planned boring locations and the locations of the underground utilities will 
require 4 hours for one LAI professional (including travel) and approximately 2 hours onsite for the 
utility locating subcontractor. 

 Non‐conductible utilities and other subsurface features (e.g., sprinkler lines and concrete sanitary 
or storm sewer pipes) are not typically identified using conventional radio detection utility locating 
equipment. Despite our best efforts to avoid utilities, utility damage is sometimes unavoidable due 
to mismarked or unlocatable utilities. LAI does not accept any liability if undocumented and/or 
non‐conductible utilities are encountered during exploration activities in areas cleared by the 
public and private utility locate services. 

 The subsurface investigation work will take one, 12‐hour day for two LAI field staff and our drilling 
subcontractor. Work is assumed to occur during business hours, 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Work can 
be conducted during off‐shift or weekend hours upon request for an additional fee, which is not 
included in the budget estimate. 

 Temporary soil boring location coordinates will be collected using a hand‐held GPS unit.  

 Soil borings will be backfilled in accordance with Ecology regulations and the ground surface 
patched with like material to the original grade. It is assumed that all soil borings will be advanced 
in gravel, and concrete coring or patching is not required.   

 The analytical laboratory estimate assumes that all analyses will be requested with a standard, 2‐
week turnaround time. Expedited analysis is available upon request for an additional fee to cover 
additional subcontractor costs, which is not included in the budget estimate. 

 The waste generated during field activities will be properly drummed, labeled, and stored on‐site 
for management by MTA. MTA will sign all applicable waste manifests and disposal 
documentation. Costs for offsite disposal of the estimated quantities of soil as non‐hazardous 
waste are included in the budget estimate. If analytical results determine that the waste does not 
qualify as non‐hazardous, LAI will discuss appropriate disposal options for the waste and any need 
for modification of the disposal costs with you. 

 The handling charge for subcontractor expenses is 12 percent, and is included in our estimated 
costs. 

Authorization	and	Proposed	Project	Schedule	
Our services will be provided on a time and materials basis using our attached standard fee schedule (Exhibit 

A). Our services will be provided in accordance with our attached general conditions (Exhibit B), which are 

hereby made a part of this agreement. If the contingency tasks detailed in the document are required, MTA 

will be notified and a notice to proceed will be authorized prior to beginning these tasks. Other contingency 

costs for additional scope items (such as soil gas and/or indoor air sampling, remediation oversight, etc.) are 

not included in this proposal, but will be brought to MTA’s attention as soon as possible, and authorized in 

separate amendments.  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 85



T‐CC Parking Lot    Landau Associates 

April 30, 2019    6 

If these conditions and budget are acceptable, please sign the authorization below and return it to us or 

authorize by your preferred method. LAI is prepared to commence work under this scope of services 

immediately upon receipt of authorization.  

*  *  *  *  * 

Thank you for providing LAI the opportunity to submit this proposal. We look forward to working with you 

on this project. Please contact Sarah Fees at sfees@landauinc.com if you have questions regarding this 

proposal. 

LANDAU ASSOCIATES, INC.  

 
Sarah Fees, LG 
Senior Geologist 

 
Eric Weber, LHG 
Principal 

 
SMM/tam 
2019‐6977 
 [X:\MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY\2019‐04_T‐CC PARKING LOT, SHELTON\PROPOSAL\LAI_MTA T‐CC PARKING LOT PRO_043019.DOCX]  

Attachments:  2019 Compensation Schedule 
    General Conditions 

*   *   *   *   *   * 

AUTHORIZATION	

The scope of services and contractual conditions as described in this proposal and its attachments are 

accepted and Landau Associates, Inc. is authorized to proceed. 

By       
  Signature*  Printed

For       
  Firm*  Date

*Name of person with contractual authority and firm responsible for payment of Landau Associates, Inc. billing. 

Mason Transit Authority 
T‐CC Parking Lot Environmental Services 
Shelton, Washington 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 86



COMPENSATION SCHEDULE – 2019 

T: Templates\Contracts\2019A Compensation Schedule Landau Associates 

Personnel Labor Hourly Rate 

Senior Principal 270 

Principal 250 

Senior Associate 230 

Associate 205 

Senior 185 

Senior Project 170 

Project 155 

GIS Analyst 155 

Senior Staff / CAD Designer 139 

Staff / Senior Technician II 124 

Data Specialist 124 

CAD / GIS Technician 124 

Project Coordinator 112 

Assistant / Senior Technician I 103 

Technician 83 

Support Staff 72 
 
 
Expert professional testimony in court, deposition, declaration, arbitration, or public testimony is charged at 
1.5 times the hourly rate. 

Rates apply to all labor, including overtime. 

Equipment 

Field, laboratory, and office equipment used in the direct performance of authorized work is charged at unit rates. 
A rate schedule will be provided on request. 

Subcontractor Services and Other Expenses 

Subcontractor billing and other project expenses incurred in the direct performance of authorized routine services 
will normally be charged at a rate of cost plus a twelve percent (12%) handling charge. A higher handling charge for 
technical subconsultants and for high-risk field operations may be negotiated on an individual project basis; 
similarly, a lower handling charge may be negotiated on projects requiring disproportionally high subconsultant 
involvement. 

Invoices 

Invoices for Landau Associates’ services will be issued monthly. Interest of 1½ percent per month (but not 
exceeding the maximum rate allowable by law) will be payable on any amounts not paid within 30 days. 

Term 

Unless otherwise agreed, Landau Associates reserves the right to make reasonable adjustments to our compensation 
rates over time (e.g., long-term continuing projects). 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 87

Rob
Highlight



GENERAL CONDITIONS 

T: Templates\Contracts\General Conditions April 30, 2019 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED – Landau Associates agrees to provide Client, for Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use, the consulting services 
identified in Landau Associates’ proposal (the Services). The proposal, together with these general conditions, form the Agreement under which the 
Services will be performed and shall have control over any other forms or agreements unless expressly modified in writing and signed by Client and 
Landau Associates. This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than Client and Landau Associates. The Services are limited to those 
expressly set forth in the proposal. If a service is not specifically identified, it is expressly excluded. Landau Associates shall have no other 
obligations, duties, or responsibilities except as expressly provided in this Agreement. Client expressly agrees that Landau Associates shall have no 
responsibility for construction means, methods, or safety. 
 
DIFFERING CONDITIONS – Landau Associates shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of all testing, services, reports, data, and 
other information furnished by Client regarding the project site. If Landau Associates believes that any condition encountered at the site or during 
the course of the project is inaccurate or differs materially from that indicated, reflected, or referred to at the time of Landau Associates’ proposal, 
Landau Associates shall notify Client within a reasonable time. Such differing conditions shall include but are not limited to: access, physical 
conditions such as subsurface conditions or underground utilities, condition of existing structures, and the presence of asbestos or any substance 
or material categorized as hazardous or toxic by federal, state, or local laws and regulations. Landau Associates shall not be required to continue 
performing the Services until such time as a change in compensation, time for performance, and/or other resolution of the differing condition has 
been mutually agreed to by Client and Landau Associates. 
 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS – Unless otherwise agreed as evidenced by mutual written confirmation, all logs, notes, calculations, reports, and 
other documents (“Work Product”) prepared by Landau Associates are instruments of service and are the property of Landau Associates. Client is 
responsible for appropriate use of the Work Product and recommendations by Landau Associates. Any and all such Work Product and 
recommendations are provided for the specific project(s), as identified; any reuse of the same for extensions of a project, or disregard for or 
deviation from Landau Associates’ recommendations, or for use on any other project, shall be at Client’s sole risk and without liability to Landau 
Associates. Client shall not, absent prior written agreement, use any Landau Associates Work Product if Landau Associates’ Services have been 
terminated prior to completion or Landau Associates has not been paid in full. Client shall release, defend, indemnify, and hold Landau Associates 
harmless from all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, expenses, and costs arising out of the unauthorized use or reuse of the Work Product. 
 
STANDARD OF CARE – Landau Associates’ services will be performed with the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by engineering or 
other professionals performing similar services in the project area at the time Services are performed. No other warranty or representation, either 
express or implied, is included or intended in our proposals, contracts, reports, and communications. 
 
INSURANCE – Landau Associates, at its own expense, carries professional liability, workers’ compensation, and employer’s liability coverage as 
required by applicable state law, and general liability insurance, including automobile liability. The amount of insurance available may vary from 
year to year. The professional liability insurance is written on a claims-made basis. If Client desires insurance coverage in addition to that carried by 
Landau Associates at the time of the Agreement, Landau Associates will cooperate to obtain such additional insurance, if available, at Client’s 
expense. 
 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – Landau Associates shall not be liable for loss or damage occasioned by delays beyond its control, or for loss of earnings, 
loss of use, or other incidental or consequential damages suffered by Client or others, however caused. Landau Associates’ liability under this 
Agreement shall be limited as follows: (a) for insured liabilities arising out of Landau Associates’ negligence, to the amount of the insurance then 
available to fund any settlement, award, or verdict; (b) for uninsured liabilities, to an amount not to exceed the total fee paid under this Agreement 
or $50,000, whichever is greater. 
 
For services involving subsurface explorations including excavations and drilled borings, Landau Associates will use good faith efforts to identify 
subsurface utilities and structures through the following methods:  review of Client-provided information (which Landau Associates shall be 
entitled to rely on), notifying the Utility Notification Center to request the marking of public utilities, and contracting with private locating services 
to mark private utilities and public utilities not marked on private property by utilities responding to the Utility Notification Center location request.  
Landau Associates shall not be liable for damage to utilities or other subsurface structures not identified through its good faith efforts, including, 
but not limited to, non-conductible utilities that cannot generally be located using standard locating techniques.     
 
PERSONAL LIABILITY – No employee of Landau Associates shall incur personal liability to Client related to the Services. 
 
INDEMNIFICATIONS – Client acknowledges that Landau Associates is not responsible for the creation or presence of contamination or pollution, if 
any, at the property. Client agrees to release, indemnify, and defend Landau Associates and any of its officers and employees from and against any 
claim, suit, action, or liability due to or related to contamination conditions at the property except to the extent such claim, suit, action, or liability 
is caused by the negligence of Landau Associates. For the purposes of this clause, contamination conditions shall mean the actual or alleged 
existence, discharge, release, or escape of any irritant, pollutant, contaminant, or hazardous substance into or upon the atmosphere, land, 
groundwater, surface water, or sediment of or near the property. Landau Associates will promptly notify Client of contamination conditions, if 
identified. 
 
SITE SUPERVISION – Landau Associates has no overall supervisory authority or actual and/or direct responsibility for the specific working 
conditions at the site and/or for any hazards resulting from the actions of any trade contractor. Unless expressly provided in the scope of services, 
Landau Associates has no duty to inspect, supervise, note, correct, or report any health or safety deficiencies of Client, contractors, or other 
entities or persons at the project site not employed or subcontracted by Landau Associates. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 88



Landau Associates 

T: Templates\Contracts\General Conditions April 30, 2019 

 
PAYMENT – Invoices for Landau Associates’ services will be issued monthly, payable upon receipt. Interest of 1½ percent per month (but not 
exceeding the maximum rate allowable by law) will be payable on any amounts not paid within 30 days, payment thereafter to be applied first to 
accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount. Any attorney’s fees or other costs incurred by Landau Associates in collecting any 
delinquent amount shall be paid by Client. If the Client fails to pay any invoice within thirty (30) days of the invoice date and such failure continues 
fifteen (15) days after Landau Associates gives Client notice of such failure, Landau Associates shall have the right to immediately terminate this 
Agreement and the Services provided hereunder. The right to terminate shall be without liability to Landau Associates and shall be in addition to all 
other legal, equitable, or contractual remedies available to Landau Associates. Client shall have no right of setoff against any billings of Landau 
Associates for disputed claims or withholding of services. 
 
SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION – If Client requests suspension or termination of our services prior to completion, Landau Associates reserves the 
right to complete such analyses and records as are necessary to place the files in order, and, when necessary to protect our professional 
reputation, to complete a report on the services provided to date. Client shall compensate Landau Associates for personnel time and all reasonable 
expenses at current rates for work completed prior to suspension or termination and for work required to accomplish such closing. 
 
TIME BAR TO LEGAL ACTION – The parties agree that all legal actions by either party against the other concerning the Services provided under this 
Agreement shall be barred two (2) years after the completion of Services by Landau Associates. 
 
GOVERNING LAW – This Agreement shall be governed by Washington law unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing. 
 
SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL – In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid and unenforceable by a decision of a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall be valid and binding. All terms of this Agreement allocating or limiting liability shall survive 
the completion of the Services hereunder and the termination of this Agreement. 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 89

Rob
Cross-Out



Resolution No. 2019-13 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE 

SCOPE OF SERVICES CONTRACT WITH LANDAU ASSOCIATES 
REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AT THE T-CC PARKING LOT 

AND PEDESTRIAN CONCOURSE. 
 
 

WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) through its Authority Board desires to 
participate in the Washington State’s Department of Ecology (“DOE) Voluntary Cleanup Program 
as recommended by the DOE; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTA has sought out an environmental compliance professional to provide 

the necessary services so as to complete the testing and seek a no further action opinion from 
the DOE, thereby making it possible to construct a new pervious parking lot and pedestrian 
concourse while fall weather is favorable for construction; and 

 
WHEREAS, Landau Associates has outlined in its Scope of Services contract its 

responsibilities and process to achieving compliance with DOE;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD that the General Manager is authorized to sign the Scope of Services between MTA and 
Landau Associates relating to necessary work and services to bring the parking lot located 
behind the T-CC into compliance with the DOE so that parking lot construction may begin. 
 

Adopted this 21st day of May, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Authority Member   Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 90



Resolution No. 2019-13 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:         
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:      
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 91



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Presentation – Informational 
Subject:    Financial Outlook and Operating Margin Update 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
Included: Sustainability Projections - Through 2024, MTA’s financial picture looks quite 
healthy based on current revenue and expense trends.  From these projections, 
capacity to continue funding operational and capital reserves remains likely. 
 
Operating Margin - Is showing steady improvement due to increases from sales tax and 
grant revenues, in addition to efforts to control operating expenses through the 
budgeting process. 
 
% of Growth in Operating Expenses - Is within management’s goal of operating 
expenses not to exceed 4% year-over-year.  This target will be considered when 
negotiating collective bargaining agreements and updating of the salary/wage scales for 
non-represented staff.  
 
General Fund Cost Recovery – A measurement exceeding 100% indicates that the 
agency can cover all costs from operating and non-operating revenue sources.  This is a 
measurement that SAO monitors. 
 
Change in Cash Flow - $1.9M has been moved to the investment account since the 
beginning of 2018. 
 
Current Ratio - Illustrates how the agency is in a strong position to cover current 
liabilities by current assets available. Although cash grew by 19.3% in 2018, the 2018 
dip in this measurement reflects a timing difference for accounts payable recorded at 
year end. This is a measurement that SAO monitors. 
 
Change in Net Position - Reflects the positive impact of the agency’s growing current 
and non-current assets without incurring debt. This is a measurement that SAO 
monitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 92



Sustainability Projections
It is management’s goal to maintain a positive 5 year sustainability plan.  The projections below reflect success with 
this strategy based on projected revenue and expenses.  Sales tax has been adjusted from what has been budgeted 
for 2019 to the actual amount received in 2018, with 3% growth applied to future years.  The plan allows for a 
continued commitment to building reserves, with no need to expend reserves through 2024 based on current 
trends.  Salaries and benefit projections are based on existing collective bargaining and non‐rep compensation 
plans with 5% growth pending contract negotiations and a comprehensive salary analysis.

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION Actual Budgeted Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating
Revenue
   Local Sales Tax 4,807,028$       4,807,028$       4,951,239$       5,099,776$       5,252,769$       5,410,352$       5,572,663$      
   Investment Interest 106,978             45,000               45,900               46,818               47,754               48,709               49,683              
   Operating Grants 3,378,164         3,189,554         3,158,680         3,186,854         3,215,028         3,343,629         3,477,374        
   Fares 356,544             368,500             375,870             383,387             391,055             398,876             406,854            
   TCC ‐ Related 162,843             125,630             128,143             130,706             133,320             135,986             138,706            
   Miscellaneous 367,686             214,507             305,391             301,779             279,370             301,424             300,075            
Expended Reserves ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
Total Operating Revenue 9,179,243         8,750,219         8,965,223         9,149,320         9,319,296         9,638,976         9,945,355        

Expenses
   Salaries and Benefits  4,841,057         5,520,376         5,695,018         5,979,769         6,278,757         6,592,695         6,922,330        
   Fuel 389,011             400,250             405,482             425,756             447,044             469,396             492,866            
   Insurance 238,506             235,477             262,305             273,489             277,975             292,635             307,372            
   TCC 198,275             240,263             242,661             266,927             293,620             322,982             355,280            
   Other Goods and Services (Excludes Depreciation) 1,177,698         903,779             939,930             977,527             1,016,628         1,057,293         1,099,585        
Reserves Allocation 699,494             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000            

Total Operating Expenses 7,544,041         7,420,145         7,665,396         8,043,468         8,434,024         8,855,001         9,297,433        

Net Operating Income (Deficit) 1,635,202$       1,330,074$       1,299,827$       1,105,852$       885,272$           783,975$           647,922$          

Pooled Reserve 699,494             819,494             939,494             1,059,494         1,179,494         1,299,494         1,419,494        

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 93



Operating Margin

The measurement below represents the percentage of total operating revenues available to cover operating 
expenses. If the amount is positive, it implies that receipts were sufficient to cover spending on operations.

HIGHLIGHTS

 $(200,000)
 $0
 $200,000
 $400,000
 $600,000
 $800,000
 $1,000,000
 $1,200,000
 $1,400,000
 $1,600,000
 $1,800,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,200,000
 $2,400,000

‐3%

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

18%

21%

24%

27%

2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Revenue in Excess of
Expenses

% Operating Revenue
vs Operating Expenses

% Benchmark

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 94



% of Operating Expense Growth

It is management’s goal to limit the growth of operating expenses year over year to less than 4%.  Expenses in 2015 
reflect the increased costs to staff and maintain the Transit Community Center.  2016 and forward, reflect the 
strategy to control expense growth.

HIGHLIGHTS

 $5,400,000

 $5,600,000

 $5,800,000

 $6,000,000

 $6,200,000

 $6,400,000

 $6,600,000

 $6,800,000

 $7,000,000

‐4.0%

‐2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

2014 Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Operating Expenses

% of Expense Growth

% Benchmark

Goal:<4%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 95



General Fund Cost Recovery

This indicator shows whether funds are able to recover costs considering all operating and non‐operating revenue 
sources. A measure of 100% or greater indicates that the fund as a whole was successful recovering the full costs of 
service through charges for services or other revenue/sources. A measure of less than 100% indicates that the fund 
had to borrow from the past, borrow from the future, or be subsidized by other means. 2015 reflects start‐up costs 
of the TCC taken from reserves.  2016 reflects an accounting entry for GASB 68 with no funds expended.

HIGHLIGHTS

 $(100,000)
 $300,000
 $700,000
 $1,100,000
 $1,500,000
 $1,900,000
 $2,300,000
 $2,700,000
 $3,100,000
 $3,500,000
 $3,900,000

90%

100%

110%

120%

130%

140%

150%

160%

2014 Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Change in
Net Position
% Fund Cost
Recovery
% Benchmark

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 96



Change in Cash Flow

Beginning in 2014 cash flow was impacted by the construction of the Transit Community Center.  2016 cash flow 
saw a significant increase due to the receipt of grant funds for the construction of the T‐CC.  2017 & 2018 balances 
reflect a commitment to rebuilding cash reserves.  We are within 10% of our 2014 pre‐construction cash balance.  
Cash reserve focus is to provide for future operating costs should expenses exceed revenue, and for capital asset 
investment such as fleet replacement. 

HIGHLIGHTS

 $3,800,000

 $4,600,000

 $5,400,000

 $6,200,000

 $7,000,000

 $7,800,000

 $8,600,000

 $9,400,000

‐40%
‐30%
‐20%
‐10%
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

2014 Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Beginning Cash
Balance
$ Ending Cash
Balance
% of Net Change

% Benchmark

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 97



Current Ratio

Current Ratio measures the number of times current assets can cover the cost of current liabilities from the general 
fund.  An amount above 1.0 implies that we are able to pay expenses as they come due.  Current assets are made 
up of cash on hand, invested funds, accounts receivable, grant receivable, sales tax receivable, parts, prepaid 
expenses.  Current liabilities equals accounts payable, wages payable, lease & event deposits, sales and leasehold 
tax payable.

HIGHLIGHTS

 $180,000

 $1,680,000

 $3,180,000

 $4,680,000

 $6,180,000

 $7,680,000

 $9,180,000

 $10,680,000

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2014 Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Current Assets

$ Current Liabilities

# Current Ratio

# Benchmark ‐ 1

Agency Goal ‐ 25%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 98



Change in Net Position

This indicator is the percentage of change in net position year over year.  An increase in net position reflects a net 
increase in assets over liabilities each year.  This is typically a positive sign because equity is increasing.  The dip in 
2015 reflects the impact of the T‐CC construction, 2016 reflects the accounting entry for GASB 68 pension liability.  

HIGHLIGHTS

 $(100,000)
 $250,000
 $600,000
 $950,000
 $1,300,000
 $1,650,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,350,000
 $2,700,000
 $3,050,000
 $3,400,000
 $3,750,000
 $4,100,000

‐5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2014 Final 2015 Final 2016 Final 2017 Final 2018 Unaudited

$ Net
Change in
Fund Equity
% Change in
Net Position

%
Benchmark

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 99



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 1 – Informational 
Subject:    Operations Statistics and Reports 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The Operations Statistics information provides a 4-year visual for ridership performance 
for Demand Response (DAR), In-County, Out-of-County and Express service.   
 
As noted, direct operational project expenses are allocated by % of miles traveled for 
each operational project and used to calculate costs per passenger trips, miles, and 
hours.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 100



Total Ridership

From Jan. 1 to April 31, 2019 an estimated 11,088 rides were lost due to:  Snowmageddon ‐ Potentially 8,077 riders were lost due to snow days 
when MTA was closed or only running snow routes, Road Construction – From Feb. 20 thru March 31, 2019, approximately 1,598 riders were 
lost due to the closure of Olympic Highway North, Driver Shortage – June 2018, we cancelled a block of DAR and one other in September 
because of driver shortages resulting in potentially 3,614 riders lost. 

HIGHLIGHTS

Total Service 
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 112,912 95,043 417,587 477,360 ‐12.5%

23000

26000

29000

32000

35000

38000

41000

44000

Total Ridership 2019
2018
2017
2016

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 101



Total Ridership Stats

Direct Project Expenses include only those costs to support Operations, Dispatch, Worker Drivers, Drivers, Maintenance, & Belfair, not including 
administrative costs.  Costs are allocated by % of miles for each service type. *Total Service does not include Vanpool, Volunteer Driver, Squaxin, 
Radich or T‐CC. 

Of special note, the Rolling Variance for Direct Project Expenses at 2.9% is below the Operating Expense Growth goal of 4%.

HIGHLIGHTS

Total Service 
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 112,912 95,043 417,587 477,360 ‐12.5%
Revenue Vehicle Miles 255,899 222,702 981,659 1,068,342 ‐8.1%
Revenue Vehicle Hours 15,406 13,637 59,756 62,400 ‐4.2%
Direct Project Expenses  1,229,164$    1,233,094$     5,540,881$    5,382,387$     2.9%
Trips/Mile 0.44 0.43 0.43 0.45 ‐4.8%
Cost/Trip 10.89 12.97$             13.27$            11.28$             17.7%
Miles Per Hour 16.61 16.33 16.43 17.12 ‐4.0%
Cost/Mile 4.80 5.54$                5.64$               5.04$                12.0%
Trips/Hour 7.33 6.97 6.99 7.65 ‐8.7%
Cost/Hour 79.79 90.42$             92.73$            86.26$             7.5%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 102



Demand Response (DAR) Ridership

The Q1‐18/19 decline is primarily related to the Feb & March 2019 snow events. One block of DAR was cancelled  in June of 2018, another block 
was cancelled in Sept. 2018. due to driver shortages; the estimated impact of the driver shortage is a loss of 3,614 riders. In April 2019, we 
trended above our 2018 numbers; this is a move in the right direction.  Good news—In 2019, we have added 6 new drivers and will add back the 
two shifts of DAR starting June 3, 2019! The CommCenter will try using social media to schedule rides beginning June 3, providing our customers 
more options to schedule a ride. We are also going to bring back the “On‐Call DAR waiting list, riders who have not scheduled for a ride in 
advance can get a ride if we have drivers available for the short notice rides. The On‐Call DAR list will also start back up on June 3, 2019.

HIGHLIGHTS

Demand Response
Jan - Mar 

2018
Jan - Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 

Months
Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance      

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 10,366 8,860 40,864 43,217 ‐5.4%

2000

2400

2800

3200

3600

4000

4400

Demand Response 2019
2018
2017
2016

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 103



Demand Response (DAR) Stats

The decline in Q1‐18/19 DAR ridership is primarily due to impact the February and March snow events. DAR miles driven is decreased by a larger 
% than other projects, therefore DAR is recognizing a reduced portion of Direct Project Expenses.

HIGHLIGHTS

Demand Response
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 10,366 8,860 40,864 43,217 ‐5.4%
Revenue Vehicle Miles 81,521 64,918 287,753 330,171 ‐12.8%
Revenue Vehicle Hours 6,268 4,936 21,594 26,395 ‐18.2%
Direct Project Expenses 399,192$        372,055$         1,666,191$    1,702,740$     ‐2.1%
Trips/Mile 0.13 0.14 0.14 0.13 8.5%
Cost/Trip 38.51 41.99$             40.77$            39.40$             3.5%
Miles Per Hour 13.01 13.15 13.33 12.51 6.5%
Cost/Mile 4.90 5.73$                5.79$               5.16$                12.3%
Trips/Hour 1.65 1.80 1.89 1.64 15.6%
Cost/Hour 63.68 75.38$             77.16$            64.51$             19.6%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 104



In‐County Ridership

The decline in Q1‐18/19 In‐County ridership is primarily due to the Feb. and March 2019 snow events. Ridership is trending back up in March 
and April 2019. In‐County ridership declined beginning June 2018 from the impact of four major road construction projects that started in 
Shelton. The Route 5 lost approximately 5,000 riders in Q2‐18 when we were not able to use Turner Ave.  The drop stabilized in Q4.

HIGHLIGHTS

Fixed Route (in county)
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 44,070 37,378 162,656 195,105 ‐16.6%

9000

10500

12000

13500

15000

16500

18000

19500

In County Ridership 2019
2018
2017
2016

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 105



In‐County Stats

In‐County miles driven averages 37,700 per quarter.  Q1 ‐ 2019 saw a decrease of 2,938 miles due to snow related 
service cancellations. 

An adjustment was made to the geo‐tracking codes in our data management system that corrects the reporting of 
vehicle revenue hours, reflected by the % increase of hours compared to the decrease in miles driven.

HIGHLIGHTS

Fixed Route (in county)
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 44,070 37,378 162,656 195,105 ‐16.6%
Revenue Vehicle Miles 37,465 34,527 147,830 151,721 ‐2.6%
Revenue Vehicle Hours 2,976 2,851 12,112 11,752 3.1%
Direct Project Expenses 183,459$        197,880$         856,663$        784,797$         9.2%
Trips/Mile 1.18 1.08 1.10 1.29 ‐14.4%
Cost/Trip 4.16 5.29$                5.27$               4.02$                30.9%
Miles Per Hour 12.59 12.11 12.21 12.91 ‐5.5%
Cost/Mile 4.90 5.73$                5.79$               5.17$                12.0%
Trips/Hour 14.81 13.11 13.43 16.60 ‐19.1%
Cost/Hour 61.65 69.42$             70.73$            66.78$             5.9%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 106



Out‐of‐County Ridership

The decline in Q1‐18/19 Out‐of‐County ridership is primarily impacted by February and March 2019 snow events. From the timing, it appears that Out‐of‐County ridership is 
being impacted by the persistent road construction in the Shelton area perhaps from riders’ inability to navigate to in‐county pick up locations.  

We will be looking into the correlation between the workers at the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard and their deployments (TDYs) to see if it is a significate number. 

HIGHLIGHTS

Fixed Route (out of county)
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 36,588 31,209 135,864 153,022 ‐11.2%

12500

14000

15500

17000

18500

20000

21500

23000

Out of County Ridership 2019
2018
2017
2016

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 107



Out‐of‐County Stats

Out‐of‐County miles driven averages 99,777 per quarter.  Q1 ‐ 2019 saw a decrease of 15,100 miles due to snow 
related service cancellations. 

An adjustment was made to the geo‐tracking codes in our data management system that corrects the reporting of 
vehicle revenue hours resulting in the increase of hours compared to the miles driven.

HIGHLIGHTS

Fixed Route (out of county)
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 36,588 31,209 135,864 153,022 ‐11.2%
Revenue Vehicle Miles 96,666 84,673 387,116 410,384 ‐5.7%
Revenue Vehicle Hours 4,314 4,004 18,287 16,954 7.9%
Direct Project Expenses 473,354$        485,274$         2,244,320$    2,107,357$     6.5%
Trips/Mile 0.38 0.37 0.35 0.37 ‐5.9%
Cost/Trip 12.94 15.55$             16.52$            13.77$             19.9%
Miles Per Hour 22.41 21.15 21.17 24.21 ‐12.5%
Cost/Mile 4.90 5.73$                5.80$               5.14$                12.9%
Trips/Hour 8.48 7.80 7.43 9.03 ‐17.7%
Cost/Hour 109.73 121.21$           122.73$          124.30$           ‐1.3%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 108



Express Ridership

The decline in Q1‐18/19 Express ridership is primarily due to February and March 2019 snow events. In February 2019, the route 6X was moved 
from Jefferson/Adam to Capital Way S. at the suggestion of our customers to allow them greater access to the State Capital using the state 
provided “Star Pass”. In October 2017, the Olympia Express service was right sized by eliminating 4 daily frequencies.

HIGHLIGHTS

Express Routes
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 9,351 7,686 33,838 37,692 ‐10.2%

1800

2100

2400

2700

3000

3300

3600

Express Ridership
2019

2018

2017

2016

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 109



Express Stats

Express Route miles driven averages 25,130 per quarter.  Q1 ‐ 2019 saw a decrease of 1,215 miles due to snow related service cancellations.

Express routes were started November 2015 ‐ the goal was to get riders to work before 8:00 am in Belfair, Bremerton and Olympia. New routes 
to Belfair, Bremerton and Olympia were added to increase availability; increased utilization has not materialized as we would have hoped. We 
will be discussing our options with WSDOT. Funding for Express Routes will expire at the end of the June 2019 biennium.  Direct Project 
Expenses are experiencing a decrease from the prior period due to the four frequency cancellations.

HIGHLIGHTS

Express Routes
Jan ‐ Mar 

2018
Jan ‐ Mar 

2019
Rolling 12 
Months

Rolling Prev. 
12 months

Rolling 
Variance     

Passenger Trips (one‐way boardings) 9,351 7,686 33,838 37,692 ‐10.2%
Revenue Vehicle Miles 25,137 23,915 99,328 116,477 ‐14.7%
Revenue Vehicle Hours 1,224 1,243 5,306 4,857 9.3%
Direct Project Expenses  123,091$        137,061$         573,833$        598,756$         ‐4.2%
Trips/Mile 0.37 0.32 0.34 0.32 5.3%
Cost/Trip 13.16 17.83$             16.96$            15.89$             6.8%
Miles Per Hour 20.53 19.23 18.72 23.98 ‐21.9%
Cost/Mile 4.90 5.73$                5.78$               5.14$                12.4%
Trips/Hour 7.64 6.18 6.38 7.76 ‐17.8%
Cost/Hour 100.53 110.22$           108.14$          123.28$           ‐12.3%

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 110



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 2 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building permit plans are in progress for the Belfair park and ride. May/June 
is the target for complete permit documents. 
 
Site permits (septic, grading, forest practices, SEPA Checklist) were submitted in 
October 2018. The SEPA determination was made on 4/12/19. The SEPA determination 
and comment period ended. The forest practices permit is pending an identified logger 
and a WSDOT permit. Those will come as part of the roundabout package. Grading 
permit/Stormwater comments are still outstanding from Mason County. 
 
WSDOT completed the Construction Agreement for Pear Orchard Right of Way. 
 
WSDOT provided comments on the Log Yard Road and SR 3 roundabout plans. The 
review comments did not include hydraulics comments due to WSDOT backlog. SCJ is 
waiting on final bid package completion until comments are received from WSDOT 
Hydraulics to minimize risk to MTA. 
 
Belfair Park and Ride:  

• SCJ submitted site permit plans to Mason County in early October 2018. 
• SCJ submitted preliminary roundabout design plans to WSDOT in October 2018. 
• SCJ submitted final roundabout plans to WSDOT the first week of April. 
• PUD 3 and CenturyLink have provided schematic utility relocation designs. 

 
Pear Orchard Construction: The Contractor discovered an unknown manhole onsite. 
After pumping the manhole under the City’s supervision to determine the pipe 
connections, the water in the manhole changed and showed signs of contamination. 
The Contractor contacted the Department of Ecology to determine next steps. Ecology 
referred the site back to the Toxic Cleanup Voluntary Cleanup Site sector of Ecology. 
Preliminary samples indicated contamination in the manhole (hydrocarbons, heavy 
metals, and PCBs). Based on the contamination in the manhole, further investigation by 
a hazardous materials qualified geotechnical engineer is likely warranted. MTA and SCJ 
plan to meet with the City of Shelton to discuss next steps and expectations. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are ready for Pickering 
Road and Cole Road.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 111



Other progress: SCJ provided Parsons with a schematic design for the Shelton Matlock 
Park and Ride relocation. SCJ is waiting for comment and input from Parsons. 
 
Project Timeline: The critical path for design of the park and ride projects remains the 
Belfair park and ride. WSDOT’s extension of the final PFA approval has pushed the final 
roundabout submittal into April. WSDOT’s review time for the final design is three 
weeks. After this review, SCJ and MTA can evaluate WSDOT’s plan comments to asses 
risk of an early advertisement. A mid-May advertisement is delayed due to backlog of 
WSDOT hydraulics comments. Delaying the roundabout plan package will allow MTA to 
minimize risk. Construction will flex into the fall with a later bid date. 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 112



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 3– Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    May 21, 2019 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 113



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board May 21, 2019 
 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 114



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|5
/2

1/
20

19
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board May 21, 2019 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Park & Ride Development:  

 As of Monday, Pear Orchard has been put on hold due to contamination. The Project Manager 
and I have requested a meeting with the City to discuss next steps. I will keep the Board 
informed on the outcome. 

 The roundabout comments have been addressed and the bid package is nearly ready. For 
additional information, see Park & Ride update under Informational Updates. 

• T-CC Parking Lot:  Landau Associates fee is higher than first expected and the approval for services is 
included in the board packet. Landau is working with the Conservation District to coordinate as much 
as possible with the testing and potential clean up in conjunction with the construction.  

• WSDOT: Attended GPAC meetings for Electrification (2 times) and Consolidated Grants process (2 
times). 

• WSTIP: Attended Cover Review Committee (2 times), Emerging Risks and Opportunities Committee 
and Monthly Executive Committee Meetings.   

• WSTA: Participated in SMTA weekly legislative call. Session has ended, and several transit initiatives 
were successful. 

• EDC:  Attended EDC Monthly Board Meeting  
• PRTPO:  Attended PRTPO meeting. 
• Outreach: Participated in the Shelton High School Business Plan Competition. 
• Training:   

 Attended Labor Relations Institute in Yakima. This is an annual event that focuses on union 
and employer relations as well as current labor issues and changes. In addition to myself, 
Marshall, Mike, Brenton Schnitzer (Lead Mechanic) and Trina Gwerder (Assistant Operations 
Manager) attended. 

• Internal Activities: 
 Usual meetings with the Executive Team and Leadership Team. Miscellaneous meetings with 

staff. 
 So far, have met with half the driving staff regarding employee engagement. The 

conversations have been helpful in gauging staff awareness to MTA’s mission as well as 
areas change is needed and what is going well. 

 Worked on Public Records Request. 
 Visited Gillig facility in Livermore CA for the rollout of their electric bus. 
 Met with Marshall and Steve regarding Radich building roof and other T-CC projects. 
 Planned and scheduled Community Conversation and public hearing for monthly pass 

increase (June 22). 
 Began updating the Transit Development Plan (TDP). The TDP will be ready for a first look by 

the board at the June board meeting. Public hearings are scheduled for early July. Final 
approval will be sought at the July board meeting. 

 Overseeing completion of many projects. 
. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 115



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
5/

21
/2

01
9 

 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• WSDOT notification of our 2019-2021 Consolidated Grant applications was received. We were 

successful in our application for operating funds. This includes our request for operating funds for 
2021-2023 biennium which will greatly help in planning for the future. We were also awarded capital 
funding for nine cutaways and two coaches. 

• The Community Conversation outreach has been scheduled for June 22. At the same time, we will 
include the public hearing for the monthly pass increase. Also doing another Public Hearing on June 4 
for monthly pass increase. 

• Transit Development Plan (TDP) will be ready for first look at the June Board Meeting and final 
approval at the July Meeting. Staff has planned for public hearings on July 2 and July 10. 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
• HR Support  

o Continuing to work on a refreshed/compliant employee handbook.   
o Reviewed the balance of performance reviews for agency staff throughout the month. 
o Beginning research for the non-rep salary wage analysis. 
o Working with Danette, Mike and Marshall to revamp the drivers lounge to provide an area where 

workers can disconnect from their work environment while enjoying their meal/rest periods. 
o Assisted several staff with FMLA and HR matters. 

• Recruiting 
o We currently have no open positions.  We anticipate our next Drivers class to begin July 10, 2019. 

• Administrative Functions 
o Members of the Admin Services Team assisted Maintenance in performing a complete physical 

inventory of vehicle parts at the end of April. 
o The 2018 Annual Report was submitted to the State Auditor’s Office on April 19.  We await notification 

for when we can expect the annual audit. 
o Updated sustainability projections for TDP reporting, results included in this board packet. 
o Developed updated processes for recording and reconciling daily pass sales and cash receipts. 

• Training. 
• Attended a Labor & Industries workshop. 
• Attended WSTIP Emerging Risks and Opportunities Committee meeting. 
• Attended IPMA Western Regional HR Conference.  I attended a pre-conference workshop for how best 

to attract today’s workers using platforms that reach multi-generations.  Conference presentations I 
attended include: How to break the cycle of We’ve Always Done it that Way, Breaking the Pay for 
Performance Link, an update on Employment Law changes, Succession Planning, Unlocking Creative 
Potential, The Power of Sustainovation (how to build sustainable yet innovative government), The New 
HR Leader: A Bona Fide Disrupter as well as two great key-note speakers. 
 

MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
Maintenance Shop and Facilities 

• Roof Replacement: 
o The roof replacement for Buildings 3&4 has started and the project is moving along. 
o The roof replacement and repairs for Buildings 1-4 is 75 percent complete. Gutters, 

downspouts and door awnings are the remaining items.  We are expecting the project 
completion no later than mid-June. 

• Procurement: 
o Based on the recent award of our Consolidated Grant, I have started the procurement for nine 

new cutaways. We will begin the process for two new diesel powered buses as well. 
o The new staff car and 2 new shop trucks have been delivered and placed into service. 

• Bus Technology: 
o The upgraded AngelTrax Vulcan video surveillance systems have been installed on buses 

300-322. I want to thank the Maintenance Team and Josh Jacobs for assisting to make this 
an efficient and trouble-free process. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 116



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|5
/2

1/
20

19
  

• Maintenance Roadeo Team: 
o We have been fortunate to assemble a maintenance roadeo team for 2019. Representing 

their respective agencies are: 
 Brenton Schnitzer, Mason Transit  
 Jonathan Reynolds, Twin Transit   
 Scott Spaulding, C-Tran. 

o This will be the 6th year we have joined with other transit systems to field a team. We are the 
only joint team competing in the state. The state competition is held August 17-18 in Tukwila. 

• Facilities General: 
o Steve Kellam, Facility Technician, has been busy landscaping the front of our Johns Prairie 

facility. Upgrades include 40 yards of top soil and new grass, landscape rockery and a 
sprinkler system. 

o All storm drains and oil water separators have been cleaned and serviced.  
• Gillig Preview Event on Electric Buses: 

o Attended the preview of the Gillig zero-emission battery electric bus in Livermore, California. 
Production will start with a 40' battery electric bus. The 40' zero-emissions battery electric bus 
will incorporate the Cummins electrified powertrain. The bus is expected to have a 150 mile 
range with a modest passenger and accessory load. Gillig anticipates that with continued 
advances in battery technology this range will increase substantially. 

• Labor Relations Institute: 
o Brenton Schnitzer and I recently attended the Labor Relations Institute Conference in Yakima. 

Topics included: 
 Communication 
 Paid Family Leave 
 Grievance processing 
 Lean insights for managing workflow 
 

T-CC Facility user traffic report: 
Gym: Gym use for April came in right about 1,229 people this month. This number also includes our 
weekly pickle ball program, Choice P.E. programs, the New Life Ministries church gathering, the 
Francisco birthday party, ASC security training and other large events. 
Conference room:  Conference Room use for April was at 109 guests attending the F.E.S.S. sponsored 
“Consider the Children” classes; the Jesus works program hosted by Sam Loomis (meetings are 1st 
and 3rd Mondays each month), and the ARC Job Club sponsored by Arc of the Peninsulas (meetings 
are 2nd and 4th Monday each month). 
Kitchen: The Mason General Hospital conducted a “Cooking with the Dietician” which attracted a great 
crowd and the Olympic College offered a continuing education class “Cake Decorating” in our 
commercial kitchen this month. People attending functions in the kitchen numbered right around 226 
people. 
Other:  April was full of projects being conducted at the T-CC. 

Updates:  These projects included Double Map sign installation, kiosk and phone charger 
station planning, landscaping, painting, outside lighting issues, and schedule management for event 
coverage. 

Radich Building:  Marshall Krier and I are still discussing the results of the Radich Building 
inspection and assessment and will continue to determine the best course of action. Fixed broken 
outside outlet on Radich building and locked it. 

Quotes: 
Future Mechanical Inspections: We received the quotes from Ace Fire and Security 

for the 5-year mechanical inspection of the fire suppression system and will budget 
accordingly for 2020. Received quotes for 5-year internal pipe exam of sprinkler system. 
gauge replacement and FDC flush from ACE fire and security. Estimate was $5500.00 to 
$6000.00 

Pressure Washing: We have contacted several pressure washing companies and are 
waiting for bids from several local contractors to pressure wash the entire T-CC. In the 
meantime, we are pressure washing as time permits. 

Kitchen Hoods:  We are also waiting for quotes regarding our kitchen hoods. These 
need to be cleaned and serviced within the next year. 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 117



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
5/

21
/2

01
9 

 

Potential Scissor Life: Marshall and I discussed the scissor lift needed at the T-CC to complete 
certain projects not feasible on a ladder and will make a decision shortly regarding the 
purchase of a scissor lift for T-CC.  

 
T-CC Building 

• Working on install of safety ladder for the Armory 
• Bird situation in atrium seems to be under control. 
• Completed monthly fire extinguisher inspections. 
• Completed Phase I and Phase II elevator testing in Leeds Building. 
• Supported Matt C. and John M., with OP’s issues 
• Completed monthly Drum Drip maintenance at T-CC 
• Hot water tank in gym building has been repaired. 
• Continuing spring painting in passenger restrooms. 
• Worked on Electrical issue in S.S.D. office with electrician and S.F.D. 
• Assisting Josh with several IT projects at T-CC. 
• Working with Finance on Op’s office renovations. 
• Met with Melanie from Genothen and discussed cash drawer project. Waiting on quotes. 
• Assembled one free-standing kiosk with Josh. 
• Assisted Josh in camera wiring / placement in OP’s office at T-CC. 
• Conducted building evacuation refresher exercise. 
 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 

• CommCenter: The CommCenter completed its shift bid and the dispatchers will start their new shifts 
on May 20, 2019. 

• Doublemap: Cell boosters were installed on 38 of our buses to improve our GPS signal. These 
boosters will improve our customer and staff’s ability to see the location of our fleet on our app.  
Doublemap is still working on the software issues.  

• Mason Wildland Team Committee: I am attending weekly meetings with the Mason County Fire 
Department to develop a planned and coordinated response to the upcoming wild fire season.  We 
also have an Operations Supervisor who attends the monthly Emergency Management Planning Team 
meetings for Mason County. 

• MTA Drivers Manual: Matt Coale finished the first draft review of the Drivers Manual. The Operations 
team has started weekly meetings to finish the second review.  Once completed, we will send out the 
third draft to drivers for their review and comments.   

• MTA Tours: During the month of April, we had the following groups tour our agency:  Grapeview 
Community Pre-School with 35 kids and 5 adults and Hood Canal School with 33 kids and 10 adults. 

• New Drivers Class – In April, Cody and Mark passed their CDL testing.  Congrats!  The class is now 
working on learning all of the fixed routes. 

• Outreach Presentations: Kathy conducted outreach events in April at:  Olympic College, Mason County 
Board of Commissioners & Mason County Activities Center. Kathy attended the following meetings:  
Moving Mason Forward, two TMBHO meetings, TIP CAP meeting and a WSTA Marketing meeting.       

• Service Review Committee: The Service Review Committee completed the blocks of work for the driver 
June 3 shake up.  The drivers will start shift bidding on May 13.  The committee has also started 
working on the October 7 shake up.  

• Test Drive: MTA was scheduled to test drive another small vehicle May 6-10, but it was cancelled 
because the dealer sold the vehicle. 

• Training: Two Operations Supervisors attended a WSTIP supervisor class, legal issues for supervisors 
and one Supervisor attended the ADA Issues & Solutions conference.  We conducted two Defensive 
Driver evaluations for van pool/community van drivers.  Three new drivers were trained in Defense in 
the Seated Position this month.    

• Vanpool: Usage rate for April 2019 is 70% 7 of 10 vans were in use. 

  

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 118



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|5
/2

1/
20

19
  

2019 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 119



2019 Work Items Completed as 
of 5/17/19

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Strategic Plan Approved ∆
Employee Handbook Approved ∆
Create Financial Management Policy Manual ∆ ∆
KPI reporting - dashboard to board beginning 1st quarter ∆ ∆
Develop route deviation, stroller, service animal, no-show policies for 
Operations ∆ ∆ ∆

Develop a light duty and position transition policies for HR X ∆

Develop an Employee Engagement Plan ∆ ∆ ∆

Wage analysis ∆ ∆
Union Negotiations ∆ ∆
Quarterly driver training ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆
Prepare a Welcome package for new DAR riders ∆ ∆

Quarterly ridership analysis and outreach inititive ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

Community Conversations ∆ ∆

Public Outreach for service changes ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆

Service change implementation plan X ∆ ∆
Bus builds for coaches and cutaways ∆ ∆

Roof replacement on Building 3 and 4 ∆ ∆

Records Management - Network reorganization ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆
IT infrastructure improvements and computer replacement ∆ ∆
Park & Ride project (through 2023) ∆ ∆ ∆ ∆
T-CC parking lot construction ∆ ∆ ∆

PASS and First Aid training completed for 1st Quarter. Operations completed on "Busing 
on the Lookout" which is a training to help in awareness of sex trafficking.

Service Review Committee is reviewing Nelson/Nygaard suggestions. A timeline has 
been prepared.

Light Duty Policy was already completed. The policy for transitioning to a new position 
will be included in the employee handbook revision.

A committee has been formed to create an employee engagment plan. The committee 
consists of driving and admin staff - UPDATE: Continued meetings. Danette meeting with 
each employee instead of a survey.

Have begun work on this. Currently working on wage analysis for finance positions.

Kathy has been out talking with large employers to assist with aligning morning and 
afternoon commuter times. She is also working with Intercity and Kitsap Transits. 
Preparing for service changes to route 9 that will take effect June 3, 2019.

Scheduled for June 22 in conjunction with the public hearings for pass increase 
recommendations.

First and second quarter inititives have been to review the Nelson/Nygaard suggestions 
for route changes. The Service Review Committee has been doing outreach to current 
riders on Route 2, 6 and 26. Changes to Route 9- now called Zipper- will take place 
beginning June 2. This route will "zip" up and down the hill between the T-CC and 
Wallace-Kneeland area in reverse to Route 5 and 7 and will provide more frequent 
service between our two busiest areas. More frequent service is one item that was 
identified in the survey taken during the service review process.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

See General Manager's report for unpdate.

CHG has begun roof replacement. Expected to be complete by June 1. Had funding for 
chip sealing parking lot and stripping, catch basin cleanout and new gate. All projects 
will be complete by June 30, 2019.

Items have been purchased and are on-site ready for installation. Also ordering camera 
upgrades for buses and additional storage for cameras at T-CC

MTA was awarded a capital grant for nine cutaways and two coaches. 

IT is working on a process for moving old electronic records as the first step.

Dashboard layout in progress. Almost complete. Dashboard will be included in June 
board packet.
Researching Service Animal policies and new law - Update: Waiting for WSDOT for 
direction. Stroller Policy is being reviewed.

Progress

Continued work.

Continued work.

Moving to 3d Quarter.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2019 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2019
May 21, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 120


	ADPA38F.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	April 16, 2019
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	NB Item 1-2019-certifications-and-assurances_Signature_Page form.pdf
	Category 1. Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant.
	1.1. Standard Assurances.
	1.2. Standard Assurances: Additional Assurances for Construction Projects.
	1.3. Procurement.
	1.4. Suspension and Debarment.

	Category 2. Tax Liability and Felony Convictions.
	Category 3. Lobbying.
	3.1. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements.
	3.2. Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance.

	Category 4. Private Sector Protections.
	4.1. Charter Service Agreement.
	4.2. School Bus Agreement.

	Category 5. Transit Asset Management Plan.
	Category 6. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing.
	6.1. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews.
	6.2. Bus Testing.

	Category 7. Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program.
	Category 8. Formula Grants for Rural Areas.
	Category 9. Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program.
	Category 10. Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs.
	Category 11. Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Programs.
	Category 12. State of Good Repair Grants.
	Category 13. Infrastructure Finance Programs.
	Category 14. Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing.
	Category 15. Rail Safety Training and Oversight.
	Category 16. Demand Responsive Service.
	Category 17. Interest and Financing Costs.
	Category 18. Construction Hiring Preferences.

	ADPE6CB.tmp
	RESOLUTION NO. 2019-12

	ADP5E2.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2019 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2019.pdf
	2019




